
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

If you are reading these papers on an electronic device you have saved the Council £11.33 and 
helped reduce the Council’s carbon footprint. 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Scrutiny Board 
7 December 2021 

 
Time 
 

6.00 pm Public Meeting? YES Type of meeting Scrutiny 

Venue 
 

Council Chamber - 4th Floor - Civic Centre 

Membership 
 

Chair Cllr Paul Sweet (Lab) 
Vice-chair Cllr Simon Bennett (Con) 
 

Labour Conservative  

Cllr Philip Bateman MBE 
Cllr Val Evans 
Cllr Rita Potter 
Cllr Jasbinder Dehar 
Cllr Asha Mattu 
Cllr John Reynolds 
Cllr Susan Roberts MBE 
Cllr Zee Russell 
Cllr Barbara McGarrity QN 
 

Cllr Wendy Thompson 
Cllr Ellis Turrell 
 

 

Quorum for this meeting is four Councillors. 
 

Information for the Public 
 

If you have any queries about this meeting, please contact the Democratic Services team: 

Contact Julia Cleary 
Tel/Email julia.cleary@wolverhampton.gov.uk 
Address Democratic Services, Civic Centre, 1st floor, St Peter’s Square, 

Wolverhampton WV1 1RL 
 

Copies of other agendas and reports are available from: 
 

Website  http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/  

Email democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk  

Tel 01902 555046 

 

Some items are discussed in private because of their confidential or commercial nature. These reports 
are not available to the public. 

http://wolverhampton.moderngov.co.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@wolverhampton.gov.uk


 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Agenda 

Page 2 of 2 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

Agenda 
 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 
Item No. Title 

 
MEETING BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
1 Apologies for absence  
 

2 Declarations of interest  
 

3 Minutes of the previous meeting (Pages 3 - 10) 
 [To approve the minutes of the previous meeting as a correct record.] 

 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
4 Quarter One 2021/22 Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints 

Report (Pages 11 - 32) 
 [To receive an update from the Customer Engagement Manager] 

 

5 Customer Contact Update (Pages 33 - 42) 
 [To receive a presentation from the Head of Customer Engagement and Registrars] 

 

6 Rainbow City (Pages 43 - 72) 
 [To receive a presentation in relation to Rainbow City] 

 

7 British Art Show 9 - Full Programme Update  
 [To receive a presentation from the Manager for Arts and Culture] – Report will be 

sent to follow. 
 

8 Work programmes Update  
 [To consider the scrutiny work programmes for future meetings.] - Report will be sent 

to follow. 
 



[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 

Scrutiny Board 
Minutes - 21 September 2021 

 

Attendance 
 

Members of the Scrutiny Board 
 
Cllr Paul Sweet (Chair) 
Cllr Philip Bateman MBE 
Cllr Val Evans 
Cllr Rita Potter 
Cllr Wendy Thompson 
Cllr Simon Bennett (Vice-Chair) 
Cllr Jasbinder Dehar 
Cllr Asha Mattu 
Cllr Susan Roberts MBE 
Cllr Zee Russell 
Cllr Ellis Turrell 
Cllr Barbara McGarrity QN 
 
In Attendance 
 
David Pattison  Chief Operating Officer 
Ross Cook  Director for City Environment 
Sarah Campbell Customer Engagement Manager 
Chris Howell Regulatory Services Manager 
William Humphries Service Manager, Private Sector Housing 
Julia Cleary Scrutiny and Systems Manager 
Earl Piggott Smith Scrutiny Officer 

 
 

 

Part 1 – items open to the press and public 
 

Item No. Title 

 
1 Apologies for absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Cllr John Reynolds, Cllr Paul Birch was in 
attendance as a substitute.  
 

2 Declarations of interest 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
3 Minutes of the previous meeting 

Resolved: 

That the minutes of the previous meeting be approved as a correct record and 

signed by the Chair. 

 
4 Annual Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report 

Page 3

Agenda Item No: 3



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

The Panel received a report from the Customer Engagement Manager, requesting 
the Board to review complaints management and performance for the period 1 April 
2020 to 31 March 2021.  
 
The Council had received 256 stage one corporate complaints in comparison to 185 
received during the same period in 2019/20. Details of the complaints were provided 
in Appendix 2. It was noted that out of the 256 cases received, 97 were upheld (at 
fault). 
 
In relation to the corporate stage one complaints, the highest figure of 170 
complaints referred to Waste Management and out of 170 received, 82 were upheld; 
this was in comparison to 56 stage one complaints received during the same period 
in 2019/20. The Complaints Team had worked closely with the waste management 
service to improve complaint handling and ensure  
appropriate remedies were put in place to achieve the best outcomes for customers. 
The council received 20 stage two cases; Out of the 20 cases received, 4 cases 
were upheld (at fault), 2 were partially upheld and 14 cases were not upheld (not at 
fault). 
 
The Council had received 33 stage one Children’s Services complaints in 
comparison to 58 complaints for the same period in 2019/20, this was a decrease of 
25 and details were provided in Appendix 1. The Board noted that no stage one 
cases were upheld, 19 were partially upheld and 14 cases were not upheld.  
 
There had been five stage two complaints which was consistent with the previous 
year and no stage three complaints had been received.  
 
The Council had received 32 stage one Adult Services complaints in comparison to 
53 in the previous year. Six cases had been upheld, 13 were partially upheld and 13 
were not upheld.  
 
The Council received 30 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) 
assessment enquiries and 13 full enquiries. Wolverhampton Homes had received 7 
Housing Ombudsman (HO) assessment enquiries and 7 full enquiries.  
 
The Board understood that when a complaint was upheld (council at fault) and the 
findings of a subsequent investigation required a financial remedy, change to policy 
or service delivery, the Customer Feedback Team produced an action plan report. 
Recommendations within these reports were agreed with appropriate Heads of 
Service and shared with the relevant Service Manager or Director to ensure 
appropriate remedies and changes were implemented. The Customer Feedback 
Team also attended regular quality assurance meetings for Adults and Children’s 
Services and Waste Liaison meetings to ensure that learning from complaints was 
used to drive service improvement. 
 
 
A number of compliments had also been received with 221 for Corporate Services, 
22 for Children’s Services and 142 for Adult’s and Public Health Services.  
 
The Chair thanked the Customer Engagement Manager for the presentation.  
 

Page 4



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

A question was raised as to whether a complaint form always had to be completed 
for a complaint to be logged and that this might put some residents off submitting a 
complaint. The query was raised as to whether this might account for the low number 
(8) of complaints in relation to arboriculture matters. It was also noted that complaints 
in relation to environmental and waste management continued to remain high and 
were not reducing over time.  
 
The Customer Engagement Manager stated that to make a complaint, most 
customers used the online form but that they could also use the email address, 
contact the team by phone or write a letter. In relation to the waste complaints, this 
was and had always been a theme, but the Customer Engagement team were 
working very closely with the waste management team to try and reduced the figures 
and that the service had been hit hard by the pandemic. In relation to the 
arboriculture complaints, this was all that had been received and the Board noted 
that it might be the case that residents often reported issues to their councillors in the 
hope that this might resolve the matter, rather than submit a formal complaint to the 
Council. The Customer Engagement Manager agreed that she would have a look at 
the complaints form to ensure that it was straight forward to complete.  
 
The Director of City Economy advised the Board that a report in relation to trees had 
been considered by the Vibrant and Sustainable Communities Scrutiny Panel in the 
previous year and that an update on this could be provided if requested. It was also 
noted that the waste services complaints did appear high but in comparison to the 
number of collections made (8 or 9 million) the percentage of complaints was not as 
extreme as it might appear. The importance of feeding back live information was also 
noted in relation to improving service delivery and again the impact that the 
pandemic had on the waste collection service was highlighted. The Director of City 
Environment commended the work done by the waste collection service but agreed 
that there was a need to focus on the customers who were dissatisfied. The Board 
agreed that many residents were grateful and complimentary of the service when it 
was efficient, which was the case most of the time. The Board did however voice 
concerns into what it considered to be the inadequacy of the purple bins and hoped 
that when these were replaced, that the replacements would be much sturdier. The 
Board also considered that it would be useful to receive some evidence of the 
lessons learnt from the complaints and that it was only considering issues where a 
complaint had been made and that there would be many more residents who may be 
dissatisfied but had not made a complaint or just addressed their concerns to 
councillors directly.  
 
Board requested a better breakdown of the waste management complaints moving 
forward and some additional information in relation to the purple bins and the 
contract that was currently in place regarding them.  
 
Board considered fly tipping and whether the Council was getting value for money 
out of the contractors that were being used and whether there was another way to try 
an apprehend the people who were fly tipping. Board considered that the £100 
incentive of the previous year had been good but that a new initiative was now 
needed, it was considered that the Council needed to build anti fly tipping processes 
into everyday practices rather than using contractors. The Director of City 
Environment stated that the approach to fly tipping had changed in recent months 
and it was also about trying to reduce waste as a whole. Enforcement was a crucial 
part in relation to fly tipping and evidence gathering was complex, the shop a tipper 

Page 5



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

initiative was still happening and considered effective. Work was being done with 
residents to try and reduce waste and there was a drive across the Council to 
encourage employees who were already out and about to report any fly tipping. The 
main aim now was however to seek to reduce waste in general.  
 
In relation to the Children’s complaints, a concern was raised in relation to the 
amount of time between the complaint and the response and whether a response or 
action would happen quicker if the complaint dealt with safeguarding or child 
protection. The Customer Engagement Manager commented that if it was 
safeguarding then it would be reported outside of this process and be considered 
directly by the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH). It was however noted that 
cases regarding children could be complex to investigate and that the Customer 
Engagement Team worked closely with the service area to ensure that timescales 
were adhered to, monthly meetings were also held with the Deputy Director for 
Children’s Services and the complainant was always kept informed as to how the 
complaint was progressing.  
 
The Board considered how the complaints process fitted in with the new Councillor 
Enquiries Unit. As many residents did liaise with councillors in the first instance 
rather than lodge a formal complaint.  The Chief Operating Officer stated that the 
Councillor Enquiry Unit had only gone live after the time scales that the current report 
referred to, however he stated that he would update councillors in relation to this and 
to ensure that the trends from the enquiries were picked up and identified. A report 
would be prepared in October in relation to this and would be considered by the 
Governance and Ethics Committee.  
 
Board queried the breakdown of compliments and the percentage coming from 
councillors and those coming from the public. A request was also made for a ward 
level breakdown of complaints. The Customer Engagement Manager confirmed that 
all of the compliments were from customers and not from councillors. At the moment 
it was not possible to provide a ward level breakdown of complaints but that this was 
being looked at moving forward.  
 
The Board noted that the Adult’s Service figures for locality west appeared higher 
than in other areas and questioned whether there was a reason for this. It was noted 
that there was no specific reason, but a more detailed breakdown of the figures could 
be provided. 
 
Resolved: 
That the report be noted.  
 

5 Private Sector Housing Standards 
Board received an update from the Regulatory Services Manager to provide 
comment on the ‘BRE Client Report – BRE Integrated Dwelling Level Housing Stock 
Modelling and Database for City of Wolverhampton Council October 2017’, assertion 
that 21% of private rented properties had a cat 1 hazard. 
 
Board understood that in 2016 the City Council had commissioned the Building 
Research Establishment to undertake a series of desktop modelling exercises on 
housing within the City of Wolverhampton. This modelling 

Page 6



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

was based on a variety of data sources including Energy Performance Certificate 
(EPC) ratings, and the English Housing Survey 2012. This data was now nearly 10 
years out of date. 
 
The aim of the report was to highlight CAT1 hazards in the City, which was likely to 
have resulted in the way the data was reported. Using EPC statistical information 
meant that the CAT1 hazards mostly related to excess cold in 
private rented accommodation, trip hazards were also included. How trip hazards 
could be guessed without visiting a property was an unanswered question. It was 
understood that private rented properties in Wolverhampton compared favourably 
when pitched against other regional properties however this was not the case 
nationally. The number of CAT 1 hazards in the City was still unknown and to find 
this information would require an inspection of every property in the City by a 
qualified officer, which was not considered feasible for many reasons including, 
resources, costs, access to homes and time. 
 
Historically the case management system that was used by the Private Sector 
Housing Service had been configured poorly making it difficult to produce meaningful 
statistics. Previously reported statistical information could not be replicated and 
officers stated that there was no confidence in any data prior to  
April 2021.  
 
It was considered reasonable to assume that in in 2021 - 2022 that the Private 
Sector Housing Service would receive around 60 Housing Health and Safety Rating 
System (HHSRS) Cat 1 hazard complaints from the 19,443 private rented houses in 
Wolverhampton. This did not mean that there were very few housing problems in 
Wolverhampton. Private Sector Housing was a reactive service, only responding to 
complaints that were received. There were rogue landlords who would stop tenants 
complaining and there were tenants who would not necessarily know how to 
complain, especially those new to the country and where English was not their first 
language. The Team were carrying out work with landlords to ensure that tenants 
knew how to complain about hazards. Work was also being carried out in relation to 
illegal evictions, and a Trading Standards Officer had been employed to work to stop 
this. The Team had been successful this year and no illegal convictions had gone to 
court.  
 
It was noted that in previous years, work had also been carried out with the Refugee 
and Migrant Centre to ensure that tenants were aware of their rights and how to 
report hazards, further work was planned in this area. The Rent with Confidence 
Scheme had been relaunched with an emphasis on landlords and landlord forums 
would resume soon.  
 
All houses would have elements that needed repair or improvement from time to 
time, some of which would create a HHSRS Cat 1 hazard. The real issue for Private 
Sector Housing was where those repairs or improvements were not carried out in an 
appropriate time scale or at all.  
 
Board noted that the introduction of effective strategic planning and operational 
management had created a strong foundation to move forward for the Service. The 
initial focus would be to ensure that ‘business as usual’ was delivered robustly, 
expediently, and efficiently, providing reassurance that the service was delivering its 
core objectives of addressing poor housing and the poor treatment of tenants. 

Page 7



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
It was stated that Private Sector Housing was now delivering a good service and was 
in a process of constant improvement with the aim to become an excellent delivering 
service. The ongoing improvements would allow the  
City Council to make significant improvements to the private rented housing stock 
and the lives of the tenants occupying the properties in Wolverhampton. 
 
The Board welcomed the report. Clarification was sough as to the category one 
definition. It was confirmed that issues such as excessive cold in a property in an 
affluent area might be managed well by the owners but in a less affluent area, the 
owners might not be able to keep the house warm and that this would then count as 
a category one hazard.  
 
The Board also queried the issue of overgrown gardens in private rented properties, 
and it was confirmed that this could be reported to the Council and that action could 
then be taken.  
 
The Board requested information about disabled tenants who required adaptations 
and what action the Council could take to encourage private landlords to fit these 
adaptations and support the tenants.  
 
The Board requested clarification about the price differences between houses that 
were the same but where it appeared that WV Living houses were more expensive 
more that the help to own homes. 
 
The Board were concerned as to how rogue landlords were tracked down and an 
overview was given as to the legislative powers and options that the council had in 
relation to this. It was also noted that there were many good landlords out there and 
some with bad tenants. The Council sought to support these good landlords to bring 
them onboard to ensure a good standard of housing for all residents.  
 
The Board were pleased so see improvements in relation to private sector housing 
standards and in particular the work being carried out with landlords. It was noted 
that rogue landlords had been prosecuted but Board considered that it was a 
constant battle with the Council needing to remain robust to ensure citizens had 
decent housing and good living conditions. Board enquired as to the current 
resources in the Council’s Housing Team, the matter of damp and what the current 
legislation was in relation to overcrowding in rented properties.  It was stated that that 
the Team included 10.7 staff plus the Service Manager for Private Sector Housing, 
who was also currently looking for contractors to provide some extra support whilst 
the newly recruited team members settled in, it was a new team but a very good and 
passionate team. In relation to occupancy, houses in multiple occupation (HMOs) 
consisted of three or more people from two or more households sharing some 
facilities and for these there were minimum room sizes that were enforced. In relation 
to larger HMOs (five or more people from three or more households) there was a 
licensing scheme in place that the Team were looking to extend. In relation to 
overcrowding in family properties, it was considered the occupants choice to live in 
such a way and as such the Council was not able to carry out any enforcement other 
than to signpost occupants to Wolverhampton Homes or other services that might be 
able to support them.  In relation to damp and mould it was a very difficult issue to 
deal with and was not always an issue with the property. This was due to a large 
number of houses, that were built as older stock that were then modernised and 

Page 8



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

sealed up which produced a large amount of moisture within the house. The Council 
in partnership with Wolverhampton Homes had launched a piece of work to 
investigate this to try and identify robust and efficient ways to deal with the issue.  
 
A question was raised in relation to cladding and low rise and commercial buildings. 
The Board enquired as to whether any database existed in relation to buildings such 
as these, identifying the type of cladding, any risks to residents and whether there 
was a works programme in place to rectify any issues identified. It was stated that 
the Ministry for Communities, Housing and Local Government (MCHLG) had sent out 
guidelines in relation to private Sector housing following the Grenfell tragedy and 
there had been a collection of information in relation to high rise buildings (over 18 
metres tall). There were 46 buildings identified in the City, mainly managed by 
Wolverhampton Homes and six or seven in private ownership. Those that had the 
specified cladding were identified and remedied very quickly, no other buildings were 
identified at the time. It was thought that MCHLG might be considering a similar 
project in relation to medium rise buildings but noting had been confirmed yet.  
 
Resolved: That the update be received. 
 

6 Work programmes 
An update on the draft work programmes was provided by the Scrutiny and Systems 
Manager.  
 
Board members noted the variety of issues being addressed not also noted that it 
would be beneficial to have more pre decision scrutiny brought to the Board for 
consideration. It was suggested that Scrutiny Board needed to be considering more 
of the big decision items prior to decisions being made by the Executive. A request 
was made for the Relighting our Council item to be considered by scrutiny prior to 
going to Cabinet on 17 November along with the Leisure Private Finance Initiative 
Report and the report in relation to City Centre Hotel Delivery. A request was also 
made for a report to come before the Board in relation to the Council’s cultural 
events, including a breakdown of costs and evidence of demand and the affect that 
such events had on the local economy.  
 
A question was also raised in relation to exempt items as it was noted that some of 
the items requested would need to be considered in closed session.  
In relation to exempt reports. The Council’s Chief Operating Officer stated that each 
report needed to be considered on its on measures and that issues such as Council 
finances could be a legitimate reason for a report being exempt. It was stated that in 
all cases the starting point for a report was that it should be above the line and then, 
only if there was a legitimate reason identified, should it be considered below the 
line.  
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That the following items be considered by Scrutiny Board as pre decision 
scrutiny: 

 

 Relighting our Council update report 

 Leisure Private Finance Initiative report 

 City Centre Hotel Delivery 
 

Page 9



 [NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

 
Minutes 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

2. That a report be provided to a future meeting of Scrutiny Board in relation to 
the Council’s cultural events. 

 

Page 10



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

 
  

 

Scrutiny Board 
7 December 2021 
 

  
Report title Quarter 1 Social Care, Public Health and 

Corporate Complaints Report 2021-2022 
  

Cabinet member with lead 
responsibility 

Cllr Paula Brookfield, Cabinet Member for Governance 
 

Wards affected All 

Accountable director David Pattison, Chief Operating Officer  

Originating service Information Governance, Customer Feedback 

Accountable employee(s) Sarah Campbell 

Tel 

Email 

Customer Engagement Manager 

01902 551090 

sarah.campbell@wolverhampton.gov.uk 

Report to be/has been 

considered by 

 

 

 

Leadership Teams - 

Finance, Governance, Regeneration, 

Joint Adult, Children’s & Education, 

Public Health, City Housing & 

Environment, City Asset & Housing, 

People and Change 

  

 

November 2021 

 

Recommendation(s) for action or decision: 

 

The Scrutiny Board is recommended to: 

 
1. Review complaints management and performance for the period 1 April 2021 to 30 June 

2021. 
 

Recommendations for noting: 
 
The Scrutiny Board is asked to note: 

 
1. The Statutory Complaints Activity for Children’s Services, Adult Services and Public 

Health, as detailed in Appendix 3 (Section 1).   
2. All the other complaints activity governed by the Corporate Complaints Procedures as 

detailed in Appendix 3 (Section 2). 
 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item No: 4



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

1.0 Background  
 
1.1 The Council’s Customer Feedback Team handles complaints, compliments and service 

enquiries from members of the public.  Those relating to social care and public health 
matters fall under a statutory framework, while the remainder are handled under the 
council’s corporate policy and procedures. 

 
1.2 This report provides an overview of the complaints, including Local Government and 

Social Care/Housing Ombudsman enquiries received during 1 April 2021 to 30 June 
2021. 

 
2.0 Attachments  
 
2.1 Appended to this covering report are the following documents: 
 
 Appendix 1 – Statutory Customer Feedback Dashboard  
 Appendix 2 – Corporate Customer Feedback Dashboard  
 Appendix 3 – Notes to the dashboard – Statutory (Section 1); Corporate (Section 2), 

Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) and Housing Ombudsman 
(HO) 

 Appendix 4 – Learning from stage one complaints (corporate, adults, children’s and 
public health) 

3.0 Complaint Training  

3.1 The Customer Feedback Team has compiled mandatory corporate complaint training 
and children’s complaint handling for council officers, which is available via the 
council’s learning hub.   The team is currently working with the Council’s organisational 
development team and is compiling an online training module for Adult’s complaint 
handling; this will be launched during 2021-2022.  

4.0   Monitoring Information 

4.1 There are no concerns with the data analysis or evidence of any groups being 
disproportionately affected.  The Council, being under the Public-Sector Equality Duty 
must, on an on- going basis, consider how its policies are working for the diverse 
communities a Council serves. 

5.0 Managing Unreasonable Customer Behaviour Procedure 

5.1 The management of unreasonable complainant behaviour procedure has been active 
since February 2015.  During this period, the Customer Feedback Team has managed a 
total of three cases in line with this procedure. 

6.0 Complaint Policy/Procedures  

  The customer feedback team carries out regular reviews of the council’s corporate 
complaints policy and Children’s, Adults and Public Health complaint procedures to 

Page 12



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

reflect current working practices and legislation.  All policies and procedures are 
presented to the relevant leadership teams and democratic panel/board for approval.   

 

7.0 Financial Implications 

7.1 There are no financial implications associated with the recommendation in this 
report. [GE/04112021/S] 

8.0    Legal Implications 

8.1     The statutory complaints procedure must comply with various statutes. These include: 

 Children and Family Services - The Children Act 1989, Representations 
Procedure (England) Regulations 2006.  The Local Authority functions covered 
include services provided under Parts III, IV and V of the Children Act 1989 

 Adult Social Care – The Local Authority Social Services and National Health 
Service Complaints (England) Regulations 2009; which came into force on 
1 April 2009. 

 Public Health - The NHS Bodies and Local Authorities (Partnership Arrangements, 
Care Trusts, Public Health and Local Healthwatch) Regulations 2012. 

[SZ/08112021/P]            

9.0    Equalities Implications 

9.1 There are no equalities implications associated with this report. 

10.0   Environmental Implications 
 
10.1 There are no environmental implications associated with this report. 
 
11.0   Human Resources Implications 
 
11.1 There are no human resource implications associated with this report. 
 
12.0   Corporate Landlord Implications 
 
12.1 There are no corporate landlord implications associated with this report. 
 
13.0 Health and Wellbeing Implications 
 
13.1 The complaints element of the social care and corporate procedure is part of a wider 

assurance process supporting quality in service delivery standards.  This can then be a 
positive experience for customers and contribute to their health and well-being.  For 
those occasions where the experience which has led to a complaint is a less positive 
one, then there is an opportunity for appropriate action or redress so that the health and 

Page 13



This report is PUBLIC  
[NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED] 

 
 

Sensitivity: NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED 

well-being of the complainant and/or relevant others is secured.  The compliments 
process allows customers to note great practice by the Council; positive experience of 
officers working in many different settings will support improved experience of health and 
well-being for individuals as well as for staff who can be satisfied that their work is 
appreciated. 

14.0    Covid Implications 

14.1 During the period, 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 a number of complaint cases were 
implicated by Covid pandemic which are outlined Appendix 3; some cases are due to 
government restrictions and regulations in place. 

15.0   Schedule of Background Papers 
 
15.1 None for consideration. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



Stage 1 Complaints 
Received 

See Appendix 3 (1.2)

13

Average Complaint 
Response Time  

See Appendix 3 (1.3)

8
DAYS

Complaints where the Council is at 
fault (Upheld) 

See Learning Appendix 4

2
Issues have been identified 
from upheld complaints and 
have been addressed; 
remedies have been provided 
to the customers by 
apologising and informing 
them of the improvements 
that have been made.

Complaints where the Council is 
partially at fault (Partially Upheld)

7
(54%)

Complaints where the Council 
is not at fault  (Not Upheld)

4
(31%)

Stage 1 Complaints 
Comparison for Q1  

See Appendix 3 (1.2)

Online 
form

Paper 
correspondence

Via Email

1

11
8

13

2020/21

2021/22

This represents an 

increase

5

20
DAYS

Statutory 
complaints

Corporate 
complaints

Quarter 1 (1 April 2021 - 30 June 2021)

How complaints are received 
See Appendix 3 (1.2)

Statutory Customer Feedback

Children’s Services Appendix 1

(15%)

1

(85%)

(7.5%) (7.5%)

P
age 15



Stage 1 Complaints Received – Appendix 3 (1.2)
Breakdown by Service Area 

Strengthening Families

2

Compliments 
Appendix 3 (1.8)

Informal
Complaints 

Appendix 3 (1.1)

9

20

C&YPiC

Fo
st

er
in

g 
Te

am

SE
N

D
 

C
&

YP
iC

 

2

3

Stage 1 Complaints Received
Breakdown by Category

So
ci

al
 W

o
rk

 U
n

it
 8

Statutory Customer Feedback

Children’s ServicesAppendix 1

Breakdown by Quarter

0

10

20

30

2020/21

Breakdown by Quarter

0

2

4

2020/21

Q
2

Q
3

2

Q
4

Breakdown by Quarter

0

1

2

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

0

8

5 3

10

0 0

7

0

2021/22

2021/22

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

1

Q
4

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

  

Q
4

0

13

Q
1

Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

Q
1 Q
2

Q
3

Q
4

6

Stage 1 Complaints Comparison – Appendix 3 (1.2)

Stage 2 Complaints Comparison – Appendix 3 (1.5)

Stage 3 Complaints Comparison – Appendix 3 (1.6)

2020/21 2021/22

Quarter 1 (1 April 2021 - 30 June 2021)

Q
1

So
ci

al
 W

o
rk

 U
n

it
 5

 &
 6

 

C
A

T 
(C

h
ild

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

Te
am

)

1 1

2

8

SEND

Adoption@Heart

A
d

o
p

ti
o

n
@

H
ea

rt
2

P
age 16



Stage 1 Complaints 
(Formal) Received  

See Appendix 3 
(2.1 and 3.2)

6

Average Complaint 
Response Time

See Appendix 3 (3.4)

Complaints where the 
Council is at fault 

(Upheld)  
See Learning Appendix 4

1
16.5%)

Complaints Where The Council Is 
Partially At Fault (Partially Upheld)

3
(50%)

Complaints Where The Council 
Is Not At Fault (Not Upheld) 

2
(33.5%)

Stage 1 Complaints 
Comparison for Q1

See Appendix 3 (2.1 and 3.2)

How complaints are received 
See Appendix 3 (3.2) 

Via Email

12

6

2020/21

2021/22

This represents a 

decrease

6

Statutory Customer Feedback

Adult Services and Public HealthAppendix 1

(100%)

6

Issues have been identified 
from these upheld 
complaints and have been 
addressed; remedies have 
been provided to the 
customers by apologising and 
informing them of the 
improvements that have 
been made.

Quarter 1 (1 April 2021 - 30 June 2021)

14
DAYS

Statutory 
complaints

Corporate 
complaints

DAYS

14

P
age 17



Compliments -
Appendix 3 (3.5)

Informal Complaints  
Appendix 3 (3.1)

100

13

Stage 1 Complaints Received  - Breakdown by Category Stage 1 Complaints Comparison

Breakdown by Quarter -See Appendix 3 (3.2)

0

10

20

30

40

2020/21

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Social Care Public Health

12
6 7 7

Stage 1 Complaints Received – Appendix 3 (3.2) - Breakdown by Service Area 

Contracted/Independent

Older People/Reablement

A
d

u
lt

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

Te
am

 W
es

t

A
d

u
lt

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

Te
am

 N
o

rt
h

1
2

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

6

2021/22

Statutory Customer Feedback

Adult Services and Public HealthAppendix 1

A
ct

iv
e 

C
ar

e 
G

ro
u

p
 –

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

ed
 S

er
vi

ce

1

Quarter 1 (1 April 2021 - 30 June 2021)

1

O
ak

s 
C

o
u

rt
 C

ar
e 

H
o

m
e 
–

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

ed
 S

er
vi

ce

V
ic

ar
ag

e 
C

ar
e 

H
o

m
e 
–

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

ed
 S

er
vi

ce

11

P
age 18



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

SECTION 1:   
Children’s Services, Adult Services and Public Health Complaints Activity  
1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 

1.0     Children’s Services – Complaint Activity 

 1.1 Informal Complaints 

   The complaint regulations provide an opportunity for young people/children, parents, 
advocates and carers to raise issues of concern without those matters being treated as 
formal complaints, as long as they are effectively addressed and resolved in a timely 
manner.  These are referred to as informal complaints; 20 informal complaints were 
received during 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 compared to 4 informal complaints received 
during 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020; an increase of 16 cases. Out of the 20 informal 
complaints, no enquiries were received via an advocacy service.  

 1.2 Stage One Complaints  

    During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 the council received 13 stage one Children’s 
Services complaints compared to eight during 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020, an increase 
of five cases. The 13 complaints received during this period refer to seven separate 
service areas.   The highest figure of three cases referred to the SEND team.  In some 
cases, this has followed extensive but unsuccessful attempts to resolve some of those 
complaints informally.  The following customer groups submitted complaints to the 
council; seven parents/five foster carers and one relative.  Out of the 13 complaints 
logged and investigated, 11 complaints were submitted via email, one complaint via an 
online form and one complaint via paper correspondence.  No stage one complaints 
were received via an advocacy service. Out of the 13 complaints logged and investigated 
during this period, two cases were upheld (at fault), seven cases were partially upheld 
(partially at fault) and four cases not upheld (not at fault). 

1.3 Timescales    

   Out of the 13 complaints logged and investigated during this period, one complaint was 
dealt with in accordance with the Children’s Act with a response timescale of ten working 
days; the average timescale was eight working days. 12 complaints were dealt with in 
accordance with the corporate complaints policy and procedure (Non-Children’s Act) with 
a response timescale of 21 calendar days; the average timescale was 20 days.  The 
customer feedback team regularly reviews response times with Children’s Services to 
improve these timescales and complainants are regularly updated on the progress of their 
complaint whilst providing realistic timescales. 

 1.4 Stage Two Complaints    

During this period 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021, we have received no statutory stage two 
complaints; this is in comparison to no complaint cases received during 1 April 2020 to 
30 June 2020.  

The Council received one children’s stage two complaint which was dealt with in 
accordance with our corporate complaints policy and procedure.  This is in comparison to 
no cases received during 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020.  The corporate children’s stage 
two complaint received is as follows: 

Page 19



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

 One complaint received for Adoption@Heart in relation to process/procedure and 
actions of the service; outcome upheld; appropriate remedies and learning have 
been undertaken with the service 

Several other complaints that could have proceeded down this route were resolved after 
significant intervention, mediation meetings and problem solving with Children’s Services, 
the complainant and customer feedback team.   

1.5    Stage Three Complaints 

Where a statutory children’s stage two complaint investigation has been carried out and 
the complainant remains dissatisfied, they have the right to request matters proceed to the 
final stage of the statutory complaints procedure; a stage three Independent Complaint 
Review Panel.  During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 no complaints escalated to a stage 
three panel during this period; this is in comparison to no stage three cases during 1 April 
2020 to 30 June 2020.  

 

1.6 Complaint Category 
 
 These are the headings under which we register the complaint against, based on the 

complaint details received – see attached Dashboard. 

1.7 Compliments 

All compliments are recorded by the Customer Feedback Team and reported as part of 
the team’s monitoring process.  During this period nine compliments were received for 
Children’s Services, compared to 13 during 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020.  Connecting 
Families received two compliments; Court Team received two compliments followed by 
Children and Young People in Care receiving two compliments. 

2.0 Public Health Complaints  
 
2.1 Regionally and nationally councils receive very few complaints in relation to Public Health 

Services. A typical complaint would be where a council has commissioned a service for 
local people through a Clinic or GP practice. Complaints in relation to GP’s and Hospitals 
are dealt with through a separate complaint process managed by Health Services.  In 
relation to Public Health complaints, there has been no complaints received during 1 
April 2021 to 30 June 2021; this is in comparison to no complaints received during 1 April 
2020 to 30 June 2020. 

 
3.0 Adult Social Care Complaints  

3.1 Informal Complaints 

   The complaint regulations provides an opportunity for adult complaints to be resolved 
informally utilising a number of resolution methods as long as they are effectively 
addressed and resolved in a timely manner.  During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 the 
council received 13 informal complaints which were resolved at service level without 
going through the formal route. This was compared to five informal complaints received 
during 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020, an increase of eight cases. 

 

Page 20



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

3.2 Stage One Complaints 

   During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 the council received six formal complaints compared 
to 12 during 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020, representing a decrease of six complaints 
during this period.  The highest figure of two cases referred to Adult Community Team 
West.  The six complaints received covered five separate service areas and were all 
received via email.  In some cases, this has followed extensive but unsuccessful 
attempts to resolve some of those complaints informally. During this period, three 
complaints received were in relation to commissioned services – see Appendix 1.  Out of 
the six cases logged and investigated during this period, one case was upheld, three 
cases partially upheld and two cases not upheld. 

3.3 Complaint Category 
 
 These are the headings under which we register the complaint against, based on the 

complaint details received – see attached Dashboard. 
 

3.4 Timescales 

Out of the six complaints logged and investigated during this period five complaints were 
was dealt with in accordance with the Statutory Adults procedure with a response 
timescale of ten working days; the average response timescale was 14 days. One 
complaint was dealt with in accordance with the corporate complaints policy and 
procedure with a response timescale of 21 calendar days; the average response 
timescale was 14 days.  Cases responded to outside of the timescale are due to various 
reasons for example, complex cases, availability of resources.  In these circumstances, 
complainants are regularly updated on the progress of their complaint. 

3.5 Compliments 

 

All compliments are recorded by the Customer Feedback Team and reported as part of 

the team’s monitoring process.  100 compliments were received during 1 April 2021 to 30 

June 2021 relating to Adult Services compared to 35 during 1 April 2020 to 30 June 

2020.  93 compliments were received for Welfare Rights, followed by three compliments 

received for the ILS and Locality West, Personalised Support Team, Community OT 

Team and Commissioning Services received one compliment. 

3.6 Areas of Learning from Complaints 

   See Appendix 4 for stage 1 learning. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 21



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

SECTION 2:  Corporate Complaints Activity, Local Government and Social 
Care Ombudsman and Housing Ombudsman Complaints Activity 1 April 
2021 to 30 June 2021  
 
4.0 Corporate Complaints Activity, Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 

and Housing Ombudsman 

 

4.1 Informal complaint enquiries/service requests 

 

  The customer feedback team works alongside the service involved and the customer 
complaining to resolve the complaint informally, preventing it becoming a formal 
complaint. It should be noted that 249 informal complaints and service request enquiries 
were logged with the customer feedback team during 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021, 
compared to 310 received during 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020.  These types of enquiries 
are varied, for example, missed bin collection, contaminated bins, appeals, parking, litter 
or enquiries that fall outside of the complaints procedure jurisdiction.  All enquiries were 
logged and resolved informally or sign posted to the correct process without going 
through the corporate complaints procedure; this provides a swift outcome and resolution 
for the customer by resolving concerns at service level.  

4.2  Corporate stage 1 complaints  

   During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 the council received 29 stage one corporate 
complaints compared to 74 received during 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020; a decrease of 
45 cases.  Out of the 29 cases logged and investigated, 11 were upheld (at fault) and 18 
not upheld (not at fault). The 29 complaints cover 8 separate service areas, the highest 
figure of 17 complaints refer to Waste Management, followed by Planning receiving three 
and Arboriculture receiving three.  Out of the 17 complaints referring to Waste 
Management, two were received for Household Waste and Recycling Centre sites (one 
case re: access to the site; one case re: assistance during a site visit), seven received for 
general waste (one case re: lack of response for waste collection timetable; two cases re: 
bins not provided; four cases re: missed bins) and eight received for garden waste (four 
cases re: replacement bins not provided; two cases re: missed bins; two cases re: 
charges/refund).  In some cases, this has followed extensive but unsuccessful attempts 
to resolve some of those matters at service level. Out of the 29 stage one complaints 
received, 23 cases were submitted via email, four cases via webform, one case via 
written correspondence and one case via telephone.  

4.3 Corporate Complaint Category 

   During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 the main issue of complaint involved failure to 
provide a service (17), followed by dissatisfaction of council policies (7), failure to achieve 
standards/quality (2) and conduct of employees (3).  

4.4  Corporate Timescales 

   The average response time for responding to each complaint is 18 days for this period; 
this is in comparison to 17 days for 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020.  The response 
timescale for stage 1 complaints responding within 21 calendar days (corporate complaints 
policy and procedure) is 90%.  Out of the 29 cases logged and investigated during this 
period, 26 cases were responded to within 21 calendar days and 3 cases responded to 

Page 22



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

outside of this timescale.  The target of 95% response time has therefore not been 
achieved; the Customer Feedback Team will continue to monitor this response time and 
work with service groups to improve this timescale.  Cases responded to outside of the 
timescale are due to various reasons for example, complex cases, availability of 
resources.  In these circumstances, complainants are regularly updated on the progress 
of their complaint. 

 
4.5 Stage 2 corporate complaints   
 
  During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 the council received five stage two corporate 

complaints compared to five cases for 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020, which is consistent.  
Out of the five cases received, two cases were partially upheld (partially at fault) and 
three cases not upheld (not at fault).  

 
  Stage two complaints received as follows: 

 
City Environment received three cases as follow: 
 

 Waste Management received one complaint in relation to officer conduct, Covid 
guidelines and customer experience at a refuse site; outcome not upheld 

 Grounds Maintenance received one complaint in relation to damage to shrubs and 
bushes during maintenance work; outcome partially upheld; appropriate remedies 
and recommendations have been carried out with the service  

 Grounds Maintenance received one complaint in relation to maintenance of shrubs 
and bushes; outcome not upheld  

 
Regeneration received two cases as follows: 
 

 Planning Department received one complaint in relation to council’s actions in 
relation to planning application; outcome partially upheld; appropriate remedies 
and recommendations have been carried out with the service 

 Planning Department received one complaint in relation to planning application 
and concerns over record of plans on the planning portal; outcome not upheld  

 
4.6     Corporate Compliments 

 

All compliments are recorded by the Customer Feedback Team and reported as part of 

the team’s monitoring process.  During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 the council has 

received 56 compliments, which is consistent in comparison to 1 April 2020 to 30 June 

2020.  Planning received 19 compliments, Skills and Employment received six following 

by Fly Tipping/Rubbish on the Streets receiving five. 
 
4.7 Area of Learning for Corporate Complaints 
 

See Appendix 4 for stage one learning. 
 

5.0 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman/Housing Ombudsman  
 
5.1 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman Enquiries (LGSCO)  
 

During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 the council received three Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman enquiries. 

Page 23



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

 
 Children’s Services received one complaint as follows: 
 

 Strengthening Families in relation to failure to act on reported concerns and 
safeguarding issues; outcome; not upheld, no maladministration 
 

Adult Services received two complaints as follows: 
 

 Adults Services/Commissioning Services received one complaint in relation to 
actions of care provider; outcome upheld maladministration and injustice.  An 
action plan has been compiled and appropriate learning, remedies and 
recommendations as outlined in the final report have been put in place 

 Adult Services and Health Partnerships received one enquiry in relation to a 
specialist chair; outcome awaiting Ombudsman’s draft decision  

 
During 1 April 2021 to 31 June 2021 Adoption@ Heart, Children’s Services received one 
published report from the LGSCO.  The complaint was in relation to a request to register 
a potential adopter; the council accepted the findings of the LGSCO and in line with 
recommendations has reviewed its adoption recruitment procedure to ensure it adheres 
to the Department of Education’s 2013 statutory guidance on adoption. 

  
5.2      Housing Ombudsman Enquiries  
 
 During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 the council received one enquiry from the Housing 

Ombudsman for Wolverhampton Homes as follows: 
 

 One enquiry received in relation handling of reports of antisocial behaviour 
concerns; outcome awaiting decision from the Housing Ombudsman  
 

5.3 Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) assessment enquiries  
 

During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 the council received six Local Government and 
Social Care Ombudsman assessment enquiries as follows: 

 

 City Environment received one enquiry for Commercial Regulation in relation to a 
fixed penalty notice received for opening a shop during a lockdown due to the 
Covid19 pandemic; outcome closed after initial enquiries out of jurisdiction   

 Finance received one enquiry for Revenues and Benefits in relation to housing 
benefit overpayment; outcome closed after initial enquiries, out of jurisdiction 

 Adult Services received one enquiry for Adult Services and Communities in 
relation to specialist chair; outcome passed to the Ombudsman’s investigation 
team for further consideration 

 Adult Services received one enquiry for Adaptions Team in relation to service 
received; outcome premature complaint  

 Wolverhampton Homes received one enquiry in relation to a house move; 
outcome premature complaint 

 Wolverhampton Homes received one enquiry in relation to work carried out to a 
private property; outcome premature complaint  

 
 
 
 

Page 24



APPENDIX 3 
 

 

5.4 Housing Ombudsman assessment enquiries  
 
 During 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021 the council received six Housing Ombudsman 

assessment enquiries for Wolverhampton Homes as follows: 
 

 One enquiry in relation to how the landlord has handled the resident's reports of 
outstanding repairs; outcome premature complaint 

 One enquiry in relation to whether complainant has exhausted complaints 
procedure; outcome premature complaint 

 One enquiry in relation to how the landlord has handled the resident’s reports of 
antisocial behaviour from their neighbour; reports for repair to damp and mould 
within the property and the council’s housing allocation scheme; outcome 
premature complaint 

 One enquiry in relation to the landlord’s handling of outstanding repairs to the 
fence; outcome premature complaint 

 One enquiry in relation to how the landlord has handled the resident’s reports of 
antisocial behaviour from his neighbour; outcome premature complaint 

 One enquiry in relation to the customer remaining unhappy with the landlord’s 
response and establish whether the complaint letter is the landlord’s final report; 
outcome awaiting response from the housing ombudsman  

 
6.0 Learning/Action Plans  

 

Where complaints highlight that things have gone wrong, heads of service, managers 

and the customer feedback team are required to identify these areas, implement 

remedies and review processes/procedures where necessary.  Customer Feedback 

Team and Directorates are committed to learning and require the completion of a 

tracking form/learning log from each complaint investigated at all stages.  When a 

complaint is upheld/partially upheld (council at fault) and the findings of a subsequent 

investigation is for a financial remedy, change to policy or service delivery, the Customer 

Feedback Team produce an action plan report. Recommendations within these reports 

are agreed with appropriate Heads of Service and shared with the relevant Service 

Manager/Director to ensure appropriate remedies and changes to policy/service delivery 

are implemented.  The Customer Feedback Team also attend regular quality assurance 

meetings for Adults and Children’s Services and Waste Liaison Meetings to ensure they 

use the learning from complaints to drive service improvements. 

  See attached Appendix 4, Learning dashboard  

 

  

 

 

 

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank



Quarter 1 – 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021

Action Plans/Learning from complaints - When a complaint is upheld (Council at fault) and the findings of a subsequent 

investigation is for a change to policy or service delivery, the Customer Feedback Team produce an action plan report and follow up with 
the service any learning/action that needs to be carried out. Recommendations within these reports are agreed with appropriate Heads 
of Service and shared with the relevant Director.   Please see below a few examples of stage 1 complaint learning 

Learning from Complaints
Appendix 4 Customer Feedback

Children’s Services – Stage one complaint learning
• Complaint in relation to delay in finalisation of EHCP plan Learning - Processes are being reviewed to avoid delays and 

manage cases in more timely and appropriate manner 
• Complaint in relation to waiting over six weeks to receive payments Learning – Measures have been put in place to 

ensure that none of our foster carers are left out of pocket for expenses we have agreed to pay
• Complaint in relation to breach of confidentiality Learning – The service are in the process of completing a service 

wide review of our internal procedures and guidance to ensure all new and existing staff are aware of safe practices 
regarding information sharing that are directly related to their role
Adult Services – Stage one complaint learning

• Complaint in relation to lack of communication with family following a safeguarding raised  Learning – As a result of 
the complaint, when the adult has an allocated social worker, the MASH team will still be making direct contact with 
relatives to discuss the concerns received including gathering views and desired outcomes of the relatives 

• Complaint in relation to mother’s belongings disposed of by home manager Learning – Unable to provide definite 
answer on why item was disposed of by previous manager as they have now left.  Apologised to complainant and 
agreed to reimburse

• Complaint in relation to delay with assessment following a referral made Learning – Case was previously managed by 
agency worker, apologised to complainant and reassured that resource levels have since improved

P
age 27



Quarter 1 (April – June 2019)

Action Plans/Learning from complaints - When a complaint is upheld (Council at fault) and the findings of a 

subsequent investigation is for a change to policy or service delivery, the Customer Feedback Team produce an action plan 
report and follow up with the service any learning/action that needs to be carried out. Recommendations within these reports 
are agreed with appropriate Heads of Service and shared with the relevant Director.   Please see below a few examples of 
stage 1 complaint learning 

Learning from Complaints
Appendix 4 Customer Feedback

Corporate Complaints – Stage one complaint learning 

• Complaint in relation to no garden waste service provided and refund request– Learning – Apologised 
to the resident and informed them of the process to enable a refund to be administered to the 
customer 

• Complaint in relation to Garden Waste service; purple bin not collected and not happy with the service 
Learning – Apologised to resident and resolved enquiry; informed resident due to Covid a number of 
staff members have been relocated to accommodate the needs and purposes of the business; this has 
affected the collections.  Collections will be monitored going forward   

• Complaint in relation to replacement bin not provided. Learning – Manager to deliver a replacement 
bin to the customer. Apology issued to the customer for the delay in resolving the issue

• Complaint in relation to missed bin collections. Learning- Apologised to resident regarding recycling 
collection; service reviewed and looked into the matter and established that the recycling collection 
details were missing from the crew’s onboard computer which has caused some confusion on who 
empties the bins. This has now been corrected and bins will be collected on the scheduled day; crew 
and customer have been updated 

Quarter 1 – 1 April 2021 to 30 June 2021

P
age 28



29
Stage 1 Response Timescales 

See Appendix 3 (4.4) Stage 1 Average Complaint 
Response Time 

See Appendix 3 (4.4)

Stage 1 Complaints where the Council is at fault 
(upheld) See Learning Appendix 4

Stage 1 Complaints where the Council 
is not at fault 

Stage 1 Complaints Comparison for Q1 
See Appendix 3 (4.2) 

Stage 1 Complaints 
decreased by

11
(38%)

26
(90% )

Responded to 
within timescales 

(Target: 95%)
18
DAYS

Issues have been identified from  upheld 
complaints and have been addressed; remedies 
have been provided to the customers by 
apologising and informing them of the 
improvements that have been made.

45
Complaints

Decrease of 45
complaints compared 

to Q1 2020/21

2020/21

2021/22

74

29

Stage 1 Complaints Received 
See Appendix 3 (4.2 and 4.3)

18
(62%)

Quarter 1 (1 April 2021 – 30 June 2021)

Customer Feedback

Corporate Complaints Appendix 2

P
age 29



Compliments Received  
See Appendix 3 (4.6)2

0
2

1
/2

2

Stage 1 Complaints Received
See Appendix 3 (4.2 and 4.3)

Stage 1 Complaints 
Breakdown by Service

Regeneration 

Finance

City Environment

1

2
0

2
1

/2
2

74

Customer Feedback

Corporate Complaints Appendix 2

Stage 1 Complaints Comparison 
See Appendix 3 (4.2 and 4.3)

Breakdown by Quarter
(Complaints were not upheld unless otherwise indicated)

Breakdown by Service Area

3

Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4

2
0

2
0

/2
1

2
0

2
0

/2
1

29

73

43

66

Service Requests
See Appendix 3 (4.1)

56

249

25

Quarter 1 (1 April 2021 – 30 June 2021)

2
0

2
0

/2
1

(1
1

 u
p

h
el

d
)

2
0

2
0

/2
1

3
2

1 1

3

1 1

17

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Email

Online form

Telephone

Letter

23
(79%)

1 (3.5%)
1 (3.5%)

4 (14%)
How complaints 

are received 
See Appendix 3 

(4.2) 

P
age 30



Stage 2 Corporate Complaints Comparison for Quarter 1
See Appendix 3 (4.5)

LGSCO enquiries for Quarter 1
See Appendix 3 (5.1 and 5.3)

2020/21

2021/22 5

2020/21

2021/22

2

3

0 2 3

Upheld Part 
Upheld

Not 
Upheld

(Council 
at fault) (Council 

partly at 
fault)

(Council 
not at 
fault)

Figures have increased for 
2021/22 Q1 compared to 
2020/21 Q1. Customer Feedback 
team has also received 6 initial 
LGSCO assessment enquiry for 
Q1 2021/22.

Appendix 2

HO enquiries for Quarter 1 
See Appendix 3 (5.2 and 5.4)

Figures have increased for 
2021/22 Q1 compared to 
2020/21 Q1. Customer Feedback 
team has also received 6 initial 
HO assessment enquiry for Q1 
2021/22.

2020/21

2021/22

3

1

5

Customer Feedback

Stage 2 Corporate Complaints, Local Government 

and Social Care (LGSCO) and Housing 

Ombudsman (HO) Enquiries

Appendix 2
Quarter 1 (1 April 2021 – 30 June 2021)

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



wolverhampton.gov.uk

Customer Contact Update
Quarter 2 2021/22

19 November 2021

Lamour Gayle

Head of Customer Engagement and Registrars

Presenter:

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 N
o: 5



Customer Services use a number of channels to communicate with 
residents, visitors to our city, businesses and partnering organisations.

Our communication channels include:

• Telephony

• Emails and web forms

• Online and paper application processing

• Face to Face

• Virtual appointments

wolverhampton.gov.ukNot Protectively Marked

P
age 34



Customer Contact data Q2 (July 2021 - September 2021)

wolverhampton.gov.ukNot Protectively Marked

115,799 
calls 

answered

27, 904 
Emails 

actioned

2,536
Applications 
processed

1164
Face to Face 

appointments

During quarter 2, we handled 147,403 Customer Contacts. 6.6 %  (9687 
calls) of customers terminated their call before we were able to answer.

P
age 35



Communication Channel-Telephony

Customer call analysis

• During Q2 2021 we received 125,486 
calls. Of these calls, we were able to 
answer 115799. Our call contact 
response rate for this quarter was 
92.3%.

• We received 5,349 more calls this 
quarter in comparison to the same 
period during 2020.

• *An analysis of Mitel (telephony system) 
was undertaken for the period of 1 July 
2021 to 27 September 2021. Data 
shows that 2491 calls were terminated 
by the customer within 80 Seconds, 844 
of those being within 30 seconds

* Analysis was undertaken for the period 1 July 2021 to 27 September 2021, this equated to 119661 calls
wolverhampton.gov.uk

Place image here

P
age 36



wolverhampton.gov.uk

Communication Channel - Emails and Webforms

Not Protectively Marked

• During Q2 we handled 27,904 emails and web form enquiries. Enquiries relating to 
Revenue and Benefits accounted for the highest number of email and webform 
customer contact.

• Our service level agreement with the internal services we support is to process 
customer emails and webform enquiries within two working days. We were able to 
achieve this during Q2.

• We analyse email data to identify any trends in customer enquiries and to identify 
opportunities to work with services to improve published customer information.

P
age 37



Not Protectively Marked

Communication Channel – Online and paper application processing

wolverhampton.gov.uk

• During Q2 we processed 2,536 Blue Badge and School applications.

• Provided support for Home to School Travel appeals.

• Continued to support local businesses with business grant applications.P
age 38



Communication Channel – Face to Face and Virtual appointments

Not Protectively Marked

At the beginning of Q2 as restrictions were eased, we surveyed our customers over a three week period to 
ensure that the way in which re-opened was led by our customers in conjunction with data collated from 
customer insight.

This enabled us to identify locations to deliver  community based customer service in addition to the Civic 
Centre.

During Q2 we undertook 1,164 face to face and virtual appointments. The highest number of appointments 
were for taxi licensing, followed by  appointments related to Revenues and Benefits.

We also delivered community based surgeries to support customers with their applications for Blue 
Badges. Surgeries for Blue Badge application support are currently held at Bilston Library, Wednesfield 
Library and the Civic Centre.

We are currently delivering surgeries to support parents and carers with their school admission 
applications from the Civic Centre and we are currently in the process of identifying further locations to 
deliver these types of support surgeries.

P
age 39



Not Protectively Marked

Future Plans to improve the customer journey

• Review of current telephony system
• Chat Bot  solution
• Web Chat solution
• Document scanning solution for customers
• Community based Customer Service Delivery
• CWC and Wolverhampton Homes community based Co-location
• Work with Insight and Performance to identify any trends in demand for
• Blue Badge appeals

P
age 40



Lamour Gayle

Head of Customer Engagement and 
Registrars
City of Wolverhampton Council

Lamour.gayle2@wolverhampton.gov.uk
01902 555536

Not Protectively Marked

P
age 41



wolverhampton.gov.uk

Not Protectively Marked

P
age 42



P
age 43

A
genda Item

 N
o: 6



P
age 44



P
age 45



P
age 46



P
age 47



P
age 48



P
age 49



P
age 50



P
age 51



P
age 52



P
age 53



P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



P
age 57



P
age 58



P
age 59



P
age 60



P
age 61



P
age 62



P
age 63



P
age 64



P
age 65



P
age 66



P
age 67



P
age 68



P
age 69



P
age 70



P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Quarter One 2021/22 Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report
	Appendix 1 - Quarter 1 Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report 2021-2022
	Appendix 3 - Quarter 1 Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report 2021-2022
	Appendix 4 - Quarter One 1 Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report 2021-2022
	Appendix 2 - Quarter One 2021/22 Social Care, Public Health and Corporate Complaints Report

	5 Customer Contact Update
	6 Rainbow City

